### MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE BRISK LUMBINI APARTMENT RESIDENTS WELFARE ASSOCIATION

### A SOCIETY REGISTERED UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE HARYANA REGISTRATIONS AND REGULATIONS OF SOCIETIES ACT 2012

Ser No	Subj	ect	Description				
1.		e of the Society ociation	BriskLumbini Apartment Resident Welfare Association				
2.	Location Regd. Office		"Brisk Lumbini" Village: Babupur, Sector 109, Gurgaon-122017				
3.	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	sdiction/ Area of ration	The Society/Association shall carry out its activities in the Gurgaon District within the territory of State of Haryana				
4.	Aims and Objects		The objectives of the Association is enumerated below				
	i.	Welfare of owners	and residents of Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes				
	ii.	To be and act as the Association of Apartment owners of the building called "Brisk-Lumbini Terrace Homes", comprising of Block A, B, C, D, E, a Group Housing Society, at Village Babupur, Sector 109, Gurgaon, Haryana (hereinafter called "the said Building") who have filed their respective declarations submitting their Apartments to the provisions of the Act.					
	iii.	To invest or deposit contribution and other moneys with the Association					
	iv.	To provide for proper maintenance, repair and replacement of the common areas and facilities by contribution from the Apartment owners, and if necessary by raising loans for that purpose. The condominium Association may also appoint any person, company or committee to conduct and run its own affairs.					
	v.	To ensure that the 5 blocks (namely blocks A to E) comprising of 274 flats are properly managed, maintained and administered in a manner compatible with the standards and expectations of the apartment owners. The Association will also regulate the rules EWS owners and residents conduct and rights in the society					
	vi.	vi.  To retain and permit use of suitable portions of the common areas to outsiders against an approved charge and apportion such income for the object of the Associations or its credit to reserve fund;					
4	vii. To establish and carry on, on its own account or jointly with individuals or institutions, educational, physical, social and recreational activities for the benefit of the apartment owners						

livale Pour Prints Sunita Pandrey

	viii.	To frame rules with the approvals of the general meeting of the Association and after consulting the competent authority
		and may establish a provident fund and gratuity fund in the
	ix.	the benefit of the employees of the Association  To obtain conveyance from the colonizer, in accordance with
		provisions of Haryana Apartment Ownership Act, 1983 and the Haryana Apartment Ownership Rules, 1987, of the right,
		title and interest, in the land with buildings thereon that forms the Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes Complex
	X.	To do all things necessary for and otherwise provide to their
	xi.	The Association shall not act beyond the scope of the objection suitably amending the provisions of the bye-laws of the Association
	xii.	for the purpose.  To provide for and to do all and /or any of the following matters
		a) Election will be conducted as per law
		b) The method of calling meeting of the Board of Managers or of the apartment owners including the procedure of voting and quorum;
		c) The election of a President from among the members of the Board of Managers to preside over the meetings of such Board and of the Association of Apartment Owners;
		d) Election of a Secretary, who shall keep a minute book wherein resolution shall be recorded;
		e) The election of a Treasurer, who shall keep the financial records and books of accounts;
		f) The maintenance, repair and replacement of the common areas and facilities and payments thereof;
		<ul> <li>g) The manner of collecting from the apartment owners their share of the common expenses.</li> </ul>
		h) The designation and removal of persons employed for the maintenance, repair and replacement of the common areas and facilities;
		i) The method of adopting and of amending the regulations governing details of the operation and use of common areas and facilities;
		j) Such restrictions on the requirements respectively se
		and maintenance of the apartments and maintenance of the apartments and facilities not set forth in the declaration, as are designed to prevent unreasonable interference with the use of their respective
Il	nids	alas Junita Pand
2	Pag	English 14/2

apartments and of the common areas and facilities by the apartment owners:

- The percentage of the votes required to amend the bye-laws and the procedure for such amendments
- Seek details of maintenance account, expenditure and collection details, for each apartment, from the Existing maintenance agency namely M/s Full Care Facility Management LLP (M/s FCFML) for the entire duration since the time the said maintenance agency had been handling society maintenance of Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes

#### Conditions 5.

- a. The income and property of the Society/Association shall be applied solely towards the promotion of the objects of the Society/Association as set forth in the Memorandum of Association and no portion thereof shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly, to the members of the Society/Association
- b. No member of the Governing Body of the Society/Association, shall be appointed to any salaried office of the Society/Association, or any office of the Society/Association paid by fees, that no remuneration shall be given by the Society/Association to any member of such Governing Body except repayment of out of pocket expenses and money lent for premises/demises to interest on Society/Association
- The Society/ Association by it constitution is required to apply its profits, if any, or other income in promoting its objects
- d.If upon the winding or dissolution of the Society/Association, there remains after satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities any property whatsoever, the same shall not be paid to or distributed among the members of the Society/Association, but shall be given or transferred to some other institution having objects similar to the objects of the Society/Association to be determined by the members of the Society/Association at or before the time of dissolution.
- 6. The management of the affairs of Society/Association is entrusted in accordance with the Rules & Regulations of the Society/Association to a Governing Body of which the first members are:

Ser No	Name, Father's name & Address	Occup ation	Designation in Society	Date of Signatu Birth
1	Mr. Ravindra Kumar Rao, S/o Sh. Amar Singh Yadav, R/o House Number 5,Barrack Number 17, Upper Anand Parvat, New Delhi – 110005 Mobile: 9811081856	Self Employ ed	President	26,06 1950 *
2	Mr Kapil Allagh	Service	Secretary	1970 1970 1970 1970 1970

Man Pyly Sumita Pandey

	B-41, Brisk Lumbin Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122005				
3	Mr Amrik Singh S/o Gurmukh Singh E-103, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Busines	Assistant Secretary	01.09.1 973	Man
4	Mr Mantosh Kumar B 073, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Service	Assistant Treasurer	09.01.1 974	Gulos
5	Mrs Sunita Pandey w/o Dhanajay Pandey E 82, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	House wife	Member	01.01.1 973	Suniter Pande
6	Mr Parminder Singh S/o Gurmukh Singh E-093, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Busines s	Treasurer	10.4.19 78	Pilip
7	Mr Sushil Kumar S/o Shivadhar R A012, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Service	Vice President	18- 01- 1969	Mound
8	Mr Arindam Das E-124, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Busines s	Member	15.5.19 79	K. Ser
9	Dr Leena Anil Karpe B 103, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Doctor	Member	10.5.19 81	Quale

 We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are hereunder subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a Society/Association in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association.

Ser No	Name, Father's name & Address	Occupati on	Designation in Society	Date of Birth	Signatu res
1	Mr. Ravindra Kumar Rao, S/o Sh. Amar Singh Yadav, R/o House Number 5,Barrack Number 17, Upper Anand Parvat, New Delhi – 110005 Mobile: 9811081856	Self Employed	President	26-06- 1956 ar of So	Haryana Sala
2	Mr Kapil Allagh B-41, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Service	Secretary	102-07	mer de la companya de
3	Mr Amrik Singh S/o Gurmukh Singh	Business	Assistant Secretary	01.09.1 973	

Alpage

Just perdan

livale pour

Switz Pandey

	E-103, Brisk Lumbin Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006				Man
4	Mr Mantosh Kumar B 073, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Gurgaon 122017	Service	Assistant Treasurer	09.01.1 974	(Mari
5	Mrs Sunita Pandey w/o Dhanajay Pandey E 82, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	House wife	Member	01.01.1 973	Sunita Par
6	Mr Parminder Singh S/o Gurmukh Singh E-093, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Business	Treasurer	10.4.19 78	Philo
7	Mr Sushil Kumar S/o Shivadhar Ř A012, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Service	Vice President	18- 01- 1969	Charma
8	Mr Arindam Das E-124, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Business	Member	15.5.19 79	And it
9	Dr Leena Anil 1 Karpe B 103, Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, Sector 109, Vil- Babupur, Gurgaon 122006	Doctor	Member	10-5- 1981	lian

Witness:

Signature:

Name: Sushil Kumar Agnihotri, Advocate

Address: Office # 403, District Courts Complex, Sector 43B, Chandigarh

Seat: R No. 30, Punjab & Haryana High Court

S. K. Agnihotri

Chandigarh/Gurugram Advocate Punjab & Harlyana High Court, Chamber No. 403, Distt. Courts Complex Sector 43, Chandigarh Mobile: 97805-22489 Advocate



I know all the above persons and they have signed in my presence.

## I). Rules &Regulations of the Society/ Association:

## 1. Short title and Introduction:

- a) These bye-laws may be called the Bye-laws of the "BriskLumbini Apartment Resident Welfare Association".
- b) The provisions of these bye-laws apply to the BriskLumbini Residents Welfare Association including all present or future owners, tenants, future tenants or their employees and for any other persons that might use the facilities of the building in any manner are subject to the regulations set forth in these by laws.
- c) The mere acquisition or rental or taking license of any of the independent Dwelling Units(hereinafter referred to as "units") of the building or occupancy of any of the said units will signify that these bye-laws are accepted, ratified and will be complied with.
- **d) Definitions:** In these bye-laws unless the context requires otherwise all words and phrases shall have the same meaning as defined under the Haryana Registration and Regulation of Societies Act, 2012 and Rules/Bye-laws framed thereunder and Haryana Apartment Ownership Act,1983 read with the Rules of 1987 framed thereunder.
- e) Haryana Apartment Ownership Act, 1983: The building located at Village Babupur, Sector-109, District Gurgaon known as "Brisk Lumbini" is submitted to the provisions of the Act the rules made there under.
- f) Affiliation: Should there be any Federation of apartment owners in the locality in which the BriskLumbini Resident Welfare Association is situated, the Association may become a member thereof, and pay the sums from time to time payable to such Federation under the rules thereof.
- g) The Association shall not act beyond the scope of its objects without fully amending the provisions of these bye-laws for the purpose.
- with the requirements of the Haryana Apartment Owner Ct, 1983. In case, any of these bye-laws conflict with the provisions of the Act will apply.
- i) Seal of the Association: The Association shall have a common seal which shall be in the custody of the Secretary, and shall be used only under the authority of a resolution of a Board of Managers and every deed or instrument to which the seal is affixed shall be attested for or on behalf of the Association by two members of the Board

6 | Page

1

Ja Sum

Sunity Pandey

and the Secretary or any other person authorized by the Association in that behalf.

#### 2. The terms of admission of members:

- a) All persons who owns an apartments in the Brisk Lumbini and executed respective declarations under section 5 submitting their apartments to provisions of the Act shall automatically be the members of the Association, and shall pay the sum of Re 1/-(Rupee One only) as entrance fee and may purchase at least one share of the face value of Rs 100/-(Rupees One Hundred Only) each. Each apartment owner shall receive a copy of the bye-laws on payment of Rs 50/- (Rupees Fifty Only) on demand.
- b) Upon any apartment owner selling his apartment or absolutely conveying the same by way of gift under his will or otherwise the purchaser or donee shall automatically become a member of the Association, and shall be admitted as member on payment of the entrance fee of Eli- (Rupee One Only). The shares held by an apartment owner shall be transferred to the name of such purchaser or donee on payment of Eli- (Rupee One Only) to the Association.
- c) On the death of an apartment owner, his apartment or his share in the apartment shall be transferred to the person or persons to whom he bequeaths the same by his will, or to the legal representatives of his estate, in case he has not made any specific bequest of the apartment. The name of the legatee or the names of legal representatives jointly shall be entered in the register of apartment owners maintained by the Secretary for the purpose of Administration, of the "Brisk Lumbini" as apartment owner or joint apartment owners. Where any legatee is a minor, the apartment owner shall be entitled to appoint a guardian of such minor.

The consequences of non-payment of subscription, maintenance bill, electricity bill or fine:

No apartment owner shall be entitled to vote on the questions of the election of members of the Board or the President, Secretary, Treasurer of any other office bearer or be entitled to stand for election to such office if he is in the last day of the year in respect of his contributions for common to the Association for more than 60 days.

# 4. The fines and forfeitures to be imposed on any member industries

a) The apartment owners shall be obliged to observe their duties and obligations as set out herein and any violation of the same shall make them liable to fine and/or forfeiture of their rights as may be determined by the Association at its meeting or by any special committee appointed by them in this regard.

Menidra Meso

le

irale 1

bunity Pand

b) Assessments: All owners are obliged to pay monthly assessments imposed by the Association to meet all expenses relating to the "Brisk Lumbini", which may include an insurance premium for a policy to cover repair and reconstruction work in case of hurricane, fire, earthquake and other hazard or calamity. The assessments shall be made pro-rata according to the value of the unit owned, as, stipulated in the declaration. Such assessments shall include monthly payments to a General Operating Reserve and a Reserve Fund for Replacements.

### c) Maintenance and repair:

- (i) Every owner must perform promptly all maintenance and repair work within his own unit, which if omitted would affect the complex in entirety or in a part belonging to other owners, being expressly or in a part belonging to other owners, expressly responsible for the damages and liabilities that his failure to do so may endanger.
- (ii) All the repairs of internal installations of the unit such as water, light, gas, power, sewage, telephones, air conditioners, sanitary installations, doors, windows lamps and all other accessories belonging to the unit area shall be at the expense of the apartment owner concerned.
- (iii) An owner shall reimburse the Association for any expenditures incurred in repairing or replacing any common area and facility damaged through his fault.

# d) Use of independent units — Internal changes.

(i) All units shall be utilized for the purpose indicated by the Grantor in the Deed of Declaration.

(ii) An owner shall not make any structural modifications or alterations in the unit or installations located therein without seeking the permission of the notified Structural Engineer and Building Department of the Government of Haryana OR the Society/Association, as the case may be in writing, through the President of the Board if no manager is employed. The Society/Association shall have the obligation to answer within the Society/Association shall have the obligation to answer within the is no objection to the proposed modification alteration or insulated the such permission will never be granted under any sincumstances which may alter/modify in any manner the façade, the colour scheme the elevation or the usage of common areas including entry/exit from the unit in any manner and/or shall result in removal of replacement of load bearing walls, columns, pillars, shifting of internal pipeline etc.

Penidonles

and the

Just Hour

July Surity Pandey

8 | Page

- e) Use of common areas and facilities and restricted common areas and facilities.
  - (i) An owner shall not place or cause to be placed in the lobbies vestibules, stairways, elevators and other areas of and facilities of a similar nature both common and restricted any furniture, packages or objects of any kind. Such areas shall be used for no other purpose than for normal transit through them.
  - (ii) Brisk Lumbini complex shall have 10 elevators devoted to the transportation of the owners and their guests or auxiliary purposes. Owners and tradesmen are expressly required to utilize exclusively a freight or service elevator for transporting packages, merchandise or any other objects that may affect the comfort or wellbeing of the passengers of the elevators dedicated to the transportation of owners, occupants and guests.

# f) Right of entry:

- (i) An owner shall grant the right of entry to the Manager or to any other person authorized by the Board or the Association in case of any emergency originating in or threatening his unit, whether the owner is present at the time or not.
- (ii) An owner shall permit other owners or their representatives when so required, to enter his unit for the purpose of performing installation, alteration, or repairs to the mechanical or electrical services, provided, that requests for entry are made in advance and that such entry is at a time convenient to the owner in case of emergency, such right of entry shall be immediate.

# g) Rules of conduct:

(i) No occupant of "Brisk Lumbini" shall post any advertisement or posters of any kind in or on the building except as authorized by the Association.

(ii) Occupants shall exercise extreme care about making noises or the use of musical instruments, radios, television, and amplifiers that may disturb others. Occupants keeping domestic animals shall at the municipal sanitary bye-laws or regulations.

(iii) It is prohibited to hang garments, rugs etc. from the windows, balconies, or from any of the facades of "Brisk Lumbing".

(iv) It is prohibited to dust rugs, etc. from the windows, or to clean rugs, etc. by beating on the exterior part of "Brisk Lumbini".

Navidra Paro

Come Lot in

Man figh

Sumity Pander

9 | Page

- (vi) It is prohibited to throw garbage or trash outside the disposal installations provided for such purposes in the service areas. If such installations are not provided, all garbage or trash shall be collected in vessel and thrown in the municipal dust bin.
- (viii) No owner, occupant or lessee shall install wiring for electrical or telephone installation, television antennae, machines or air conditioning units etc. on the exterior or that protrude through the wall or the roof of that condominium except as authorized by the Association.
- (viii) Notice to Association: An owner who mortgages his units, shall notify the Association through the Manager, if any, or the President of the Board in the event there is no Manager, the name and address of his mortgagee; and the Association shall maintain such information in book entitled "Mortgagees of Units".
- (ix) Notice of unpaid assessments: The Association shall at the request of a Mortgagee of a unit report any unpaid assessments due from the owner of such unit.
- h) Obligation to timely payment of all charges and contributions— Each and every owner of an apartment in the Housing Complex, who is a also member of the Association, shall be under obligation at all times to pay the common maintenance charges and user charges as determined by the Association from time to time and the utility bills in respect of electricity and water consumption without being in arrears.
- i) Observance of duties and responsibilities- The apartment owners shall be obliged to observe their duties and obligations as set out herein and any violation of the same shall make them liable to fine and /or for forfeiture of their rights as may be determined by the Association at its meeting or by any special committee appointed by them in this regard.
- payment of his obligations for a period of 60 days or more, the Board of Managers shall be competent to take all measures for the recovery of such arrears of the monthly maintenance charges, or monthly utility delices (electricity and related charges) and other user charges, including coercive measures by taking recourse to disconnection of electricity and water supply to the dwelling unit, blocking its sewage outflow, and denial of account the use of common facilities including the lifts. However, any coercive will be taken only after serving legal notice and giving certain now with the owner to payup. Board of Managers will ensure that if the payment is withheld due to some grievance, as conveyed by the owner taken on such matters recorded in the Minutes of the meeting as well as communicated formally to such owner(s).

Midra Mag

way of

fundant of the

Hon

John Sunity Pande

# Categories of members of the Society/Association:

- (a) Category of the membership shall be homogenous and shall be restricted to only the owner of the apartment for the present.
- (b) Joint apartment owners: Where an apartment has been purchased by two or more persons jointly, they shall be jointly entitled to the apartment and the shares of the Association shall be issued in their joint names, but the person whose name stands first in the share certificate shall alone have the right to vote.
- Holding of one share compulsory: Every apartment owner must hold at least one share of the Association (joint apartment owners holding the shares jointly)

# Resignation and/or expulsion of Members/Officer bearers:

- (a) Any member, office bearer or manager may resign at any time of his/her own account.
- (b) Subject to the disqualifications contained in clause No. 3&4 above, no member may be excluded or expelled from the Association or from participation in any of its proceedings.
- (c) Removal of officers: Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor elected at any regular meeting of the Board or at any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose.

# Formation of General Body:

- (a) Designation: The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by and from the Board of Managers. The Board may appoint an Assistant Treasurer, and an Assistant Secretary and such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary.
- (b) Election of officers: The officers of the Association small be elected as per law defined under Haryana Apartment Ownership Act 1983 Rules 1987 and Haryana Registrations and Regulations of Societies

# Powers and Functions of the General Body:

(a) Powers and duties of Association: The Association will have the responsibility of administering the complex, approving the annual budget, establishing and collecting monthly assessments and arranging for the management of the "Brisk Lumbini" in an efficient manner. Except as

Unidra la

11 | Page

Non

Sumity Pande

otherwise provided, resolutions of the Association shall require approval by a majority of owners, casting votes in person or as mentioned in the Bye-laws.

- (b) Place of meetings: Meeting of the Association shall be held at suitable place convenient to the owners as may from time to time be designated by the Association.
- (c) Annual meetings: The first annual meeting of the Association shall be held on within 90 days from the date of registration of Declaration. Thereafter, the annual meetings of the Association shall be held on the first Sunday of the month of June in each succeeding year. At such meetings there shall be elected by ballot of the apartment owners a Board in accordance with the requirements of the bye- law. The owners may also transact such other business of the Association as may properly come before them.

## (d) Notice of Meetings

- (i) A notice of 14 days, indicating the time, date and venue, shall be given to the members for any general meeting. Provided that such notice may be of a shorter duration if not objected by at least 1/3rd of the members.
- (ii) The notice of any general meeting sent by electronic mail to the email ID of the members shall be an accepted mode of service of such notice.
   (iii) A copy of the notice of every general meeting, annual or special, shall also be endorsed to the office of the District Registrar and/or the Housing Commissioner, as the case may be. A hard copy of the said notice may be sent to the concerned offices of the District Registrar and/ or the Housing Commissioner, if these offices are not electronically connected.

# (e) Quorum and Voting

 The quorum for every general meeting, annual or special, shall be 40% of the members.

(ii) There shall be one vote for each apartment, which may be exercised by the joint member on authority of the member.

(iii) Every vote, be it exercised by the member or by the duly authorized joint member, shall be cast in person.

Provided that the member may communicate such authority the joint member through electronic mail with a copy thereof endorsed to the Secretary of the Association.

(f) Adjourned Meetings. —

Nevida No

were findent finde

light Sunita Pan

Para 8 e, (modifie

Meetings. Notice and Quorum of the General Body:

Quorum for the meeting of the General body will be 40%, 25%, 15% as per HRRS Act 2012 amendment Act 2013 of the total members entitled to vote and present in person, subject a minimum of four members. In case of a meeting adjourned for want of quorum, for the adjourned meeting shall not be less than 10% of the total members, subject to a minimum of three. The general Body shall be competent to transact all business in such adjourned meeting except the consideration of any Special Resolution. Any Special Resolution can be passed in such adjourned meeting only if at least 25% of the total members of the Society are present.

- (ii) A meeting of the General Body of the society will be held as and when required. However, at least on meeting of the General Body of the Society, called as the Annual General Meeting, (AGM) will be held in a year, within six months of the close of the financial year for consideration and adoption of the duly audited annual accounts of the society in addition to transaction of any other business of the Society as may be required.
- (iii) The Governing Body of the society may convene an extra-ordinary meeting of the General Body of the society at any time after giving due notice as prescribed hereunder, either of its own or within in 45 days of receipt of a written requisition along with reason for convening such meeting, for at least 1/10th of the members of the General Body.
- For any meeting of the General Body, a clear notice of at least 14 day along (iv) with a copy of the agenda of the business to be transected, date, time & venue of the meeting will be given to the members of the General Body. A copy of such notice will also be endorsed to the District Registrar.
- (v) A meeting of the General Body may also be convened at shorter notice, if agreed to, by a majority (at least above 50% of the total members) of the members of the General Body.

The proceeding of all meetings of the General Body will be recorded in the (vi) minutes-book (bound or in loose leaves)) maintained separately purpose by the Secretary and such minutes will be signed by the C

the meeting and the Secretary of the society.

ent of Industries 8

- (i) A general meeting of the Association may be adjourned if the quorum for such meeting is not complete.
- (ii) It shall be competent for the Board of Managers to convene an adjourned general meeting after a gap of not less than 48 hours of the meeting first convened and adjourned.
- (iii) If no quorum is present in the adjourned meeting, a total of members present shall constitute the quorum and the matters decided.
- (g) Order of business: The order of business at all meetings of the owners of units shall be as follows:
  - (i) Roll call
  - (ii) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice
  - (iii) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting.
  - (iv) Reports of officers.
  - (v) Report of the Housing Commissioner or the Registrar or of the Officer duly authorized by them, if present.
  - (vi) Report of committees.
  - (vii) Election of board of managers
  - (viii) Unfinished business
  - (ix) New business
- (h) Account details from Maintenance Agency- Seek details of maintenance account, expenditure and collection details, for each apartment, from the Existing maintenance agency namely M/s Full Care Facility Management LLP (M/s FCFML) for the entire duration since the time the said maintenance agency had been handling society maintenance of Brisk Lumbini Terrace Homes, and also from any new Maintenance Agency engaged in future. Also to take necessary legal recourse in case the details are not shared or the shared details have financial irregularities

9. Formation of Governing Body/Executive Committees:

(a) Management of Association: The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Managers who shall be elected from amongst the apartment owners for a term of three years.

(b) In the exercise of powers and discharge of the duties for the administration of the affairs of the Association, the Board of Managers may

13 | Page

m 9

- Philps

Sunity Pand

from time to time appoint the following or such other sub-committees as they may deem proper and necessary consisting of members of the Association, with such terms as it may deem fit-

(c) The number of members of such sub-committees shall be as determined by the Board of Managers at the time of their appointments; and Board of Managers may co-opt, as a member of such Sub-committee(s) such specialists having expertise and experience as the Board may consider proper. The Sub-committee(s) so appointed shall furnish their findings and report to the Board of Managers as directed. Upon receipt of the report(s) from the Sub-committee(s), the Board of Managers shall consider the same and take appropriate decisions.

#### 10. The strength of the Governing Body including details of Office bearers:

- (a) There shall be ten (10) persons comprising the Board of Managers, who shall be elected from amongst members of the Association.
- (b) There shall be no specific hierarchy amongst or posts amongst office bearers of the Governing Body, which shall act collectively in the manner set out herein. However, the Board may employ for the Association a manager not being a member of the Governing Body at a compensation determined by the Board to perform such duties and services as the Board shall authorize
  - (c) No member of the Governing Body of the Society/Association, shall be appointed to any salaried office of the Society/Association, or any office of the Society/Association paid by fees, that no remuneration shall be given by the society/Association to any member of such Governing Body except repayment of our of pocket expenses and interest on money lent for premises/demises to the Society/Association.

#### 11. Mode of election of the Governing Body:

(a) The Term of the Governing Body shall be three years from the date of approval of its election by the District Registrar;

(b) The Governing Body will declare the Schedule of Elections and appoint the Returning Officer for conduct of elections and notify/display a list of members of the General Body entitled the least 45 days prior to the holding of the General Meeting for conductive elections. The Governing Body shall also send notices for holding elections of the Governing Body to all the members, conveying the date, time and the manner. The information w.r.t. holding of election for the Governing Body shall also be sent to District Registrar to appoint an observer, if he so desires.

ParidraPao

Green

sold france

July Surita Pandey

(c) Any objections qua the list of members of the Society entitled to vote shall be decided by the Returning Officer in consultation with the office-bearers of the Society. However, the decision of the Returning officer shall be final in the event of any difference of opinion. The Returning officer shall, thereafter, invite nominations to be filed within the period prescribed in the Schedule of elections, scrutiny and withdrawal of nominations, if any, for election of the office-bearers and the executive members of the Governing Body

## (d) Powers and Functions of the Governing Body:

- (i) Powers and duties of Board: The Board of Managers shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association, and may do all such acts and things as are not by law or by these bye-laws directed to be exercised and done by the owners.
- (ii) Other duties: In addition to duties imposed by these bye-laws or by resolution of the Association, the Board shall be responsible for the following that is to say:
  - a. Care, upkeep and surveillance of the "Brisk Lumbini" and the common areas and facilities and the restricted common areas the facilities; Determination and Collection of monthly maintenance charges from the owners;
  - Designation, employment remuneration and dismissal of the personnel necessary for the maintenance and operation of the "Brisk Lumbini", the common areas and facilities and the restricted common areas and facilities;
  - To provide for the manner in which the audit and accounts of the Association, shall be carried out and maintained;
  - d. Raise bills, receive the amount and deposit the same with the appropriate authority on account of monthly water and electricity bills, such bills will be calculated and prepared in line with the rates charged by the Government agencies (viz., DHBVN/ HUDA/HSVP etc as the case may be) to the Association;
  - e. To inspect the accounts kept by the Secretary and for the treasurer and examine the registers and accounts books and to take steps for the recovery of all sums due to the Association.
  - f. To sanction working expenses, count cash balance and dother miscellaneous business;
  - g. To see the cash book is written up promptly and is sign one of the members of the Board authorized in this behalf.
  - To hear and deal with complaints.

(iii) Removal of managers: At any regular or special meeting duly called anyone or more of the managers may be removed with or without cause by a majority of the apartment owners and a successor may then

15 | Page

fund Kaful Jinan

Ligh Sum't

and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. Any manager whose removal has been proposed by the owners shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting.

- (iv) Fidelity Bonds: The Board may require that all officers and employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds shall furnish adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association.
- (v) Meeting/quorums, Notices and Agenda of the Governing Body Meeting:
  - (a) Organization meetings: The first meeting of newly elected Board shall be held within 30 days of election at such places as shall be fixed by the managers at the meeting at which such managers were elected and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected managers in order legally to constitute such meeting, provided a majority of the whole Board shall be present.
  - (b) Regular meetings: Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of managers but at least **two** such meetings shall be held during each year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board shall be given to each manager, personally or by mail or telegraph, at least three days prior to the day named for such meetings.
  - (c) Special meetings: Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President on three days' notice to each Manager given personally or by mail, or telegraph which notice shall state the time, place (as herein above provided) and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least three Managers.

(d) Waiver of notice: Before or at any meeting of the Board any Manager may, in writing waive notice of such meetings and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a Manager at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. Managers are present at any meeting of the Board on needing be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

(e) Quorum: All meeting of the Board, one third of the total strength of the managers shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the acts of the Managers present at a meeting at

16 | Page

And John

Mar

Sunited Par

which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board. If at any meeting of the Board, there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn meeting, from time to time. At any such adjourned meeting, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice, provided there is a quorum present.

#### (vi) Powers and duties of each of the office bearers separately:

- (a) President: The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board. He shall have all of the general powers and duties, which are usually vested in the office of the President of an Association.
- (b) Vice President: The Vice President shall take place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President not the Vice President is able to act, the Board shall appoint some other member of the Board so to act an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board.
- (c) Secretary: The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board and the minutes of all meetings of the Association; he shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board may direct; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incidental to the office of Secretary.
- (d) Joint Secretary: He shall assist the Secretary of the Association in discharge of his duties and responsibilities
- (e) Treasurer: The Treasurer shall be responsible for Association funds and securities and shall also be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and dispursements in books belonging to the Association. He shall be responsible for the deposits of all moneys and other valuable effects in the and to the credit of the Association in such depositories by from time to time be designated by the Board of Managers.

(vii) The manner for the investment of the funds, keeping of accounts and for an annual or periodical audit of accounts:

7 | Page

L Jens

Harr

July Surity Pander

- (a) Funds: Funds may be raised by the Association in all or any of the following ways, namely: -
  - (i) By share;
  - (ii) By contributions and donations from the apartment owners;
  - (iii) From common profits which shall form the nucleus of the Reserve Fund;
  - (iv) By raising loans, if necessary, subject to such terms and conditions as the Association, with the approval of the Competent Authority, may determine in this behalf.
- (b) Investment: The Association may invest or deposit its funds in one or more of the following: -
  - (i). In the Central Co-operative Bank or in the State Cooperative Bank; or
  - (ii). In any of the securities specified in Section 20 of the Indian Trust Act, 1882 or
  - (iii).In any Co-operative Bank other than those referred to in clause
  - (a) of this bye-law; or in any banking company approved for this purpose by the Association.
- (c) Accounts: A banking account shall be opened by the association into which all moneys received on behalf of the Association, shall be paid provided that the Secretary may retain in this personal custody an amount not exceeding Rs 5000/- for petty expenses. All payments above Rs 500/- shall be made by cheques signed by the Secretary and one member of the Board of Manager.
  - (i). The Board of Managers shall maintain a pass-book in respect of every member in electronic or physical form containing particulars of the amount due from member (in respect of common maintenance charges utility bills, user charges, or any other demand), the payments the balance towards or against the member Assureceipt of profits from common areas, as the case receipt of profits from common areas, as the case available to the Association members on demand during the Annual general Meeting of the Association or at any stage.

Randralao

Cours

for John John

Diede

Lyb Sunity Pande

18 | Page

- (ii). The Association (Board of Managers) shall on or before 31<sup>st</sup> July in each year publish an audited annual financial statement in respect of the common area and facilities containing:
  - a) The profit and loss account;
  - b) The receipts and expenditure of the financial year;
  - c) A summary of the property and assets and liabilities of the common areas and facilities of the Association giving such particular as will disclose the general nature of these liabilities and assets and how the value of fixed assets has been arrived at.
- (iii). The Annual Accounts shall be submitted for Audit by a Chartered Accountant engaged by the Board, such Chartered Accountant not being a member of the Association or a close relative of any of the members. The audited financial statement shall be open to the inspection of any member of the Association during office hours and in the office of the Association and a copy thereof, shall be submitted to the competent authority not later than 31st August, every year.
- (iv). Every financial statement shall be accompanied by a complete list of apartment owners, along with the amount receivable from or payable to the members. There shall also accompany the financial statement a similar list of loanees. The financial statement shall state up to what date profits and expenses of common areas are included.
- (d) **Publication of Accounts and Reports:** A copy of the last financial statement and of the report of the auditor, if any, shall be kept in a conspicuous place in the office of the Association.
- (e) Appointment of Auditor: The Association shall appoint at its general meeting, a registered Chartered Accountant or a firm of Chartered Accountant as an auditor who shall audit the accounts of the Association to be prepared by the Board as herein provided and shall examine the annual return, and verify the the accounts relating thereto and shall either sign the same as him to be correct duly vouched and in accordance with the law, or specially report to the Association in what respect he finds it incorrect un-vouched or not in accordance with law.

(f) Power of Auditor: The auditor shall be entitled to call for and examine any papers or documents belonging to the Association covering complete scope of activities of Association, including those

19 | Page

www

Jan Jan Jahr

Poply Sunited Par

relating to the common areas and facilities (including limited common areas and facilities) and common expenses, and shall make a special report to the Association upon any matter connected with the accounts which appears to him to require notice. The Board of Management shall extend full assistance to the Auditor and make all such documents and records available to him as may be required for the same

- (g) The income and property of the Society/Association shall be applied solely towards the promotion of the objects of the Society/Association as set forth in the Memorandum of Association and no portion thereof shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly, to the members of the Society/Association.
- (h) The Society/ Association by its constitution is required to apply its profits, if any, or other income in promoting its objects.

# (viii) The manner of making, altering and rescinding Rules and Regulation: -

**Amendment of byelaws:** These bye-laws and Memorandum of Association may be amended by the Association in a duly constituted meeting for such purpose and no amendment shall take effect unless approved by 3/5<sup>th</sup> of owners present and voting.

Provided that where a member is unable to attend the meeting in person, he may communicate his concurrence or reservation to the amendment to the memorandum or the Bye-laws, as the case may be, by electronic means or letter at least one day prior to the date of the meeting, which shall be read out by the Secretary in the meeting.

(ix) The manner of dissolution of the Society/Association and such other matters as may be thought expedient, having regard to the nature and objects of the Society/Association.

a) The Association may not be dissolved or in any way superseded unless such motion is approved by owners through a pecial resolution passed in a general meeting of the Associated approved by at least 3/5th of the members present and volume.

b) If upon the winding up or dissolution of the Society Association, there remains after satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities by property whatsoever, the same shall not be paid to or distributed among the members of the Society/Association, but shall be given or transferred to some other institution having objects similar to the objects of the Society/Association to be determined by the

20 | Page

Jacker Jacker

Dirale Dirale

Sun't Pandey

members of the Society/Association at or before the time of dissolution.

# (x) Engagement of Agencies, Service Provider, Estate Manager and other officials

- a) The Board may engage one or more service providing agencies for performance of such functions or delivery of such services and for such compensation as it may determine for the purpose.
- b) The Board may engage or employ individuals, on full-time or part-time basis in the employment of the Association, for a remuneration or compensation as determined by the Board, and performance of such duties and services as may be decided by the Board.
- c) In case a Service provider(s) is/are engaged by the Association, the selection of such service provider(s) would be based on lowest bidder for the set of services being sought. Association is fully empowered to replace the service provider in case of failure on part of Service Provider to deliver the contracted services.

# 12. Parking of Vehicles: The apartment owners/ residents/ tenants shall follow the following guidelines in this behalf:

- a) As car parking slots are earmarked for each apartment, parking stickers shall be issued for each apartment for regular overnight parking of vehicles inside the building complex. These stickers will be displayed on the front windscreen of the cars of the residents.
- b) Entrance and parking of any additional vehicle on a regular basis for any apartment inside the Complex will be regulated by the Board of Managers.

c) It is expected that every owner/ resident shall park or cause to be parked his cars at the assigned parking slot specifically allotted to an apartment.

d) All the apartment owners and residents are expected to e their vehicles or taxies are not parked in the main drive way drop and pick-up facility of the passengers;

e) The rear setback area of the complex may be used as the floating car parking space during the day time only;

21 | Page

Jula Jahrel

Man Surity Pander

- f) No owner or resident shall park or allow his vehicles to be parked in the drive-ways/ pathways demarcated for the movement of vehicles in the basement, or park two-wheelers in the area earmarked for four-wheelers.
- Domestic Staff (servants, drivers, cleaners, cooks and domestic workers
  - a) Apartment owners/ residents are required to get the servants, drivers, cleaners, cooks and domestic workers (henceforth to be referred as the domestic staff) employed by them verified by the local police and to submit a copy of the police verification to the Board. Entry to the Housing Complex may be denied to the domestic staff not verified by the local police.
  - b) The names and other particulars of the servants, drivers and domestic staff employed by the residents should be supplied by them to the Board. The Board shall issue identity cards to them that must be carried by the domestic staff while in the Complex. On termination of the employment of any member of their domestic staff, it shall be the responsibility of the owner/resident to inform the Board and to return the identity card.
  - c) The domestic staff is prohibited from using the common areas for recreation, assembly or sitting unless accompanied by the residents. Domestic staff will use only the areas earmarked for them in the Complex area

Redistrar of Societies

Paidm New (

Comme

Freder Sc.

Quale

Her Sunita Pandey